
 
From: Sue Dowling   
Sent: 29 January 2025 09:56 
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk> 
Cc: Belinda McGarry; Amanda Murray; Jordan Taylor; James Bradshaw 
Subject: RE: UPDATED CONDITIONS (KIN533/1) 
 
Dear Lorna  
  
Amended Application 
 
Thank you for the below.  Yes, it is absolutely fine to forward on my email to the 
resident objectors – thank you.  
  
There are a couple of errors and one deletion in/from your email below – I have 
corrected it in red and removed now the reference to ‘off sales’.    
  
With thanks and best regards 
  
Sue 
  
  
From: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk>  
Sent: 29 January 2025 09:06 
To: Sue Dowling   
Cc: Belinda McGarry >; Amanda Murray; Jordan Taylor  James Bradshaw   
Subject: RE: UPDATED CONDITIONS (KIN533/1) 
  
Hi Sue,  
  
Many thanks for sending the below email. 
  
I will update the residents, with the below details – are you okay with me sending 
through the email with the attachments? 
  
As per your email, please could you confirm the new hours being requested are as 
follows: 
  
Licensable Activities sought: 
Plays, Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Dance, Anything similar to music or 
dance - Indoors Only 
Mondays to Sundays - 09:30 to 00:30 (previously 01:30) 
  
Late Night Refreshment - Indoors Only 
Mondays to Sundays - 23:00 to 00:30 (previously 01:30) 
  
The Sale of Alcohol - On the Premises 
Mondays to Sundays - 09:30 to 00:30 (previously 01:00) 
  
 



Proposed Opening Hours: 
Mondays to Sundays - 09:00 to 01:00 (previously 02:00) 
  
Please let me know by return of email and I will contact the objectors todya, and I 
look forward to receiving the applicant bundle with the amended application and 
additional information. 
  
Kind regards 
Lorna McKenna 
Licensing Compliance Officer 
Licensing  
Place Department  
Hammersmith & Fulham Council 
  
  
  
  
From: Sue Dowling   
Sent: 28 January 2025 16:45 
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk> 
Cc: Belinda McGarry <; Amanda Murray >; Jordan Taylor   
Subject: UPDATED CONDITIONS (KIN533/1) 
  
Dear Lorna 
  
Capital Theatre – Dirty Dancing 
  
Thank you for your email and the very comprehensive Agenda Papers – very 
helpful.  In view of these, I am just cutting back our Applicant’s bundle to avoid 
duplication.   I hope to be able to send it across tomorrow.     
  
In the meantime, I can confirm the following which may give the four local residents 
some additional comfort – perhaps you would update them of these developments 
when you have a moment? 
  
I can confirm that having considered their comments, the Applicant is content to: 
 
 

1. Cut back the proposed opening hours to 1 am latest (with licensable activities 
finishing by 12:30pm/00:30, latest) from the hours sought in the original 
application.  
 
 

2. Reduce the proposed hours for any licensable activities on the external 
terrace in the evening to conclude at the latest, at the end of the evening (mid-
performance) interval; and 
 
 

3. Amend its application so that it is clear that only ‘on-sales’ are 
permitted.  There will be no ‘off-sales’. 



  
We have therefore updated the Conditions – see version attached – to reflect these 
changes (and also to renumber them throughout from 1 to 22).  We will include this 
latest version the Applicant’s bundle clearly marked tomorrow.  
  
In terms of audience arrival/dispersal, there is a raft of information on Capital 
Theatre’s website designed to assist (and encourage) those coming to/from the 
theatre to use public transport or the extensive parking facilities available (and in line 
with that, to minimise any risk of disturbance to local residents).  This information is 
easily accessible through  Capital Theatre - Dirty Dancing in the FAQ section.  This 
also links with further information available through Access Westfield London - 
Access Westfield London 
  
Our Clients very much wish to reiterate to all concerned that their theatre will be 
professionally operated to a very high standard in accordance with a detailed Event 
Safety Management Plan (as confirmed in the bespoke volunteered conditions). 
They wish their theatre to be a welcomed addition to the local environment, to extend 
the availability of musical performances to those who wish to attend, without 
negatively impacting on that environment. They are confident that through the 
operation of their ESMP; the nature of the planned performances and the excellent 
transport facilities linked to the Centre, the Licensing Objectives will be promoted at 
all times.    
  
More to follow tomorrow,  
  
With best regards 
  
Sue 
  
Sue Dowling  
Partner  
For and on behalf of Blandy & Blandy LLP 
  



From: Sue Dowling <Sue.Dowling@Blandy.co.uk>  
Sent: 30 January 2025 10:15 
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk> 
Cc: Belinda McGarry <Belinda.McGarry@Blandy.co.uk> 
Subject: (KIN533/1) 
 
Dear Lorna 
  
Capital Theatre – Committee Hearing, 5 February 2025 
Further Information for the Local Resident Objectors 
  
Apologies that we have not as yet finalized the Applicant’s bundle.   My assistant and IT manager are 
just sorting out the bundle now (it has various links in it which are proving a challenge for me!) and 
we will be able to get this to you by 1pm latest today.   
  
In the meantime, I have taken my Client’s specific instructions on the questions raised by one of the 
Objectors and set out their responses below.    It may be best that these responses are considered 
along with the additional information in the Applicant’s bundle (which includes a Security Overview 
and Dispersal Plan provided by Westfield (URW), the Applicant’s Landlord – relating to the wider 
Westfield environs and its excellent links with public transport).  It is however also absolutely fine for 
you to forward this email and the responses to the Objectors now, and we can then follow up with 
the Bundle early afternoon.    We hope that the additional information below will allay the concerns 
of the local residents concerning the theatre’s planned operation in terms of its gentle egress of its 
audience, following a performance in the evening.  
  
Responses to Questions raised by Local Resident:  
  

1. What is the maximum capacity for the venue, what numbers are expected per performance.  

The maximum number is currently 670 (subject always to Fire Risk Assessment/cap) as the 
theatre space has been designed to be intimate with the audience being seated in-the-round 
and each member being no more than 8 seating rows from the stage area. 

2. Can the applicants confirm that patrons leaving after 11pm will not be able to exit the centre 
from the exit next to Zizzi by the theatre (that this will be closed) as this would lead them 
directly onto Wood lane and could potentially disturb residents. 

Capital Theatre, as a tenant of the wider Westfield centre, does not have control of the 
entrances and exits to Westfield.   The Applicant has however sought clarification from 
Westfield, which has confirmed that the doors closest to Capital Theatre, by Zizzi restaurant, 
are locked at 12pm.  The Applicant’s understanding from Westfield is that it is not able to 
change that timing due to activity across its centre, in their tenants’ other businesses.    
 
However, the Applicant is very happy to confirm that its management, security and usher 
teams will (as part of its standard operating procedures) help direct patrons from their venue, 
towards the exits in the main atrium. 
 
 

3. Can they confirm that patrons will be directed to leave the venue by the exit in the main 
atrium and be directed towards the Central line Tube station and Bus stops. Which will not 
cause any disturbance to residents as that exit is away from homes, this will be a reassurance 
to residents in the neighbouring streets. 



Please see the information set out under point 2.  The Applicant can indeed confirm that it will 
proactively direct their patrons to the exits in the main atrium.  Further, Westfield has 
confirmed to the Applicant that it is willing to work with our team so that their staff do the 
same.  This aspect of its theatre operations will form part of the training of all Capital 
Theatre’s management, security and usher teams. 

4. Can the applicants confirm that patrons who choose to drive will be given a favourable 
discount/incentive to park in the Westfield Car park, to prevent them parking on our local 
streets as this is a controlled zone with residents parking until 10pm. That this information 
will be clearly displayed on their website to say that the area has limited parking for visitors 
and is patrolled by wardens until 10pm and it is advised that they park in the Westfield Car 
Park.  

  
As a tenant of Westfield, the car parks not within Capital Theatre’s control and accordingly 
they are not consequently able to offer discounts.  [The Applicant understands that Westfield 
does not offer any discounts to any of the businesses operating within their centre, including the 
cinema (which trades late into the night/early morning].   
 
In terms of transport facilities available to those visiting our theatre, the Applicant has full 
details of the public transport links and car park facilities at Westfield, on its website.  The 
Applicant will also update its website (prior to opening) to include clear wording to advise 
patrons of the local area parking restrictions and to advise that, if driving to its theatre, 
parking facilities are available at Westfield. The Applicant will also add this information to 
any pre-performance communications its sends to patrons. 

  
With best regards 
  
Sue 
  
Sue Dowling  
Partner  
 
  



From: Sue Dowling  
Sent: 30 January 2025 13:26 
To: Mckenna Lorna: H&F <Lorna.Mckenna@lbhf.gov.uk> 
Cc: Amanda Murray; Jordan Taylor; James Bradshaw; Anisha Ali  
Subject: FW: (KIN533/1) 
 
Dear Lorna  
  
Capital Theatre:  Applicant’s Bundle for the Hearing on 5th February  
  
Here is the Applicant’s bundle ready for the Hearing next week.   It does have a 
number of links in it (including to a trailer to give the Committee and all present a 
good flavour of the Dirty Dancing performances that will take place at the theatre) 
which we hope we will be able to access during the Hearing.   
  
With best regards 
  
Sue 
  
Sue Dowling  
Partner  
 




















































































